<u>Minutes of the 29th meeting of the Executive Council held on 1st Dec 2017 at</u> 11:00 am in meeting room of Barad Sadan, Academic Block, Sikkim University

29th meeting of the Executive Council was held on 1st Dec 2017 at 11:00 am in meeting room of Barad Sadan. Following were present:

1. Prof. Jyoti Prakash Tamang, Off. Vice-Chancellor	-	Chairperson
2. Prof. Chetan Singh, Former Director, IIAS, Shimla	-	Member
3. Shri T.R. Poudyal, IFS(Retd.) Former Secretary, Govt. of Sikkim	-	Member
4. Shri Kamal Kafley, Secretary (Retd.), GOS, Pakyong, Sikkim	-	Member
5. Dr. Sreeradha Dutta, Distinguished Fellow, Asian Confluence, Shillong	-	Member
6. Prof. Bapukan Choudhury, Deptt. of Anthropology, Guwahati University	-	Member
7. Prof. Irshad Gulam Ahmed, Dean, School of Languages & Literature	-	Member
8. Prof. V. Rama Devi, Dean, School of Professional Studies	-	Member
9. Prof. Nawal K. Paswan, Dean, School of Social Sciences	-	Member
10.Prof. Nutankumar S. Thingujam, Dean, School of Human Sciences	-	Member
11.Dr. S. Manivannan, Dean of Students' Welfare	-	Member
12.Prof. Pratap Chandra Pradhan, Head, Deptt. of Nepali	-	Member
13.Dr. Subir Mukhopadhyay, Associate Professor, Deptt. of Physics	-	Member
14.Shri Debasish Pal, Finance Officer	-	Special Invitee
15.Shri T.K.Kaul, Registrar	-	Secretary

Shri G.P. Upadhyaya, Additional Chief Secretary, HRDD, Govt. of Sikkim was represented by Shri D.K. Pradhan, Special Secretary & Director (Higher & Technical Education), Govt. of Sikkim.

Prof. Ghanashyam Nepal and Prof. Amaresh Dubey could not attend the meeting due to their pre-occupations and sought leave of absence.

Shri Satyam Rana, Assistant was present to assist the Council.

At the outset the Secretary introduced Prof. Jyoti Prakash Tamang, Officiating Vice-Chancellor as the Chairperson of the Council after having taken over the charge from Prof. T.B. Subba who demitted office on 13th Oct 2017 (AN) on completion of his tenure.

Thereafter, Chairperson welcomed all members of the Council especially Shri Debasish Pal, Finance Officer who was attending the Executive Council meeting as a Special Invitee for the first time.

The Chairperson placed on record valuable contribution of Prof. T.B. Subba, former Vice-Chancellor in the Executive Council especially in streamlining systems, introducing innovative ideas and above all in conducting the meetings in orderly manner during his five-year term. A number of decisions were taken during his tenure which have positive impact on the standard and quality of higher education in Sikkim in general and the University in particular.

Thereafter, agenda items were taken up as under:

SECTION-1 CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES AND ACTION TAKEN REPORT

EC 29.1.1: Confirmation of the minutes of the 28th meeting of the Executive Council held on 11th August 2017

The minutes of the 28th meeting of the Executive Council held on 11th August 2017 were circulated to all members on 31st August 2017. No comments have been received from any of the members of the Council.

The minutes of the 28^{th} meeting the Executive Council held on 11^{th} August 2017 as circulated to all members on 31^{st} August 2017 were confirmed.

EC 29.1.2: Action taken report on the minutes of the 28th meeting of the Executive Council held on 11th August 2017

The Secretary presented the action taken report on the minutes of the 28th meeting of the Council. The Council was informed that the correct spellings of name of Finance Officer is Shri Debasish Pal, not Shri Debashish Paul as mentioned at in the minutes of 28th meeting (EC28.4.2.3) The Council noted the action taken by the University.

SECTION - 2 REPORTING ITEMS

EC 29.2.1: Appointment of Dr. Dinesh Kumar Ahirwar to the post of Assistant Professor in the Department of Peace and Conflict Studies & Management

The Council noted that Ms. Dipmala Roka was offered the post of Assistant Professor in the Deptt of Peace and Conflict Studies & Management and she expressed her inability to accept the offer as she accepted the offer for the post of Assistant Professor in the Department of International Relations. Dr. Dinesh Kumar Ahirwar who was in the waitlist was offered the post in lieu of Ms. Dipmala Roka. Dr. Ahirwar joined the University on 21st Oct 2017.

EC 29.2.2: Appointment of Shri Binod Bhattarai to the post of Assistant Professor in the Department of Sociology

The Council noted that Dr. Raile Rocky Ziipao was offered the post of Assistant Professor in the Department of Sociology. However, he requested for extension in joining upto 30th June 2018 as he had got some international assignment. The University asked him to join the University instead of going for international assignment and was asked to join by 27th Sept 2017. Since he did not join by the stipulated date, his offer was cancelled vide letter dated 10th Oct 2017. Shri Binod Bhattarai who was in the waitlist was offered the post in lieu of Dr. Raile Rocky Ziipao. Shri Bhattarai joined the University on 13th Oct 2017.

EC 29.2.3: Relieving of Dr. Manish, Associate Professor on lien

The matter for relieving Dr. Manish, Associate Professor, Deptt. of International Relations on lien to join as Professor in the Centre for International Politics, School of International Studies, Central University of Gujarat was considered by the Council in its 28th meeting held on 11th August 2017. As decided by the Council Dr. Manish gave three months notice and was relieved on lien for one year on 31st Oct 2017 (A/N). The Council noted the action of the University.

EC 29.2.4: Appointment of Shri Sandipan Kar as Personal Assistant

Based on the decision of the Council in its 28th meeting held on 11th August 2017, Stenography (Skill test) for Personal Assistant was held on 16th August 2017 for those candidates who had qualified the written examination.

Based on the marks in the written examination and having qualified the stenography test, Shri Sandipan Kar was offered the post of Personal Assistant. Shri Kar joined the University on 6th Nov 2017. The Council noted the action of the University.

SECTION-3 RATIFICATION MATTERS

EC 29.3.1: Appointment of Dr. Anil Kumar Verma to the post of Assistant Professor, Department of Microbiology

The Council noted that Dr. Bhupendra Kumar Verma was offered the post of Assistant Professor in Deptt. of Microbiology and he joined the University on 15th Sept 2017. He submitted his resignation as he has been selected in AIIMS, New Delhi. After depositing salary for the period falling short of notice period of one month, his resignation was accepted by the Vice-Chancellor and was relieved on 2nd Nov 2017(A/N). Dr. Anil Kumar Verma was in the waitlist and has been offered the post of Assistant Professor in Department of Microbiology in place of Dr. Bhupendra Kumar Verma.

The Council ratified the action of the Vice-Chancellor in giving offer to Dr. Anil Kumar Verma in place of Dr. Bhupendra Kumar Verma as Assistant Professor in Department of Microbiology.

EC 29.3.2: Resignation of Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew from the post of Assistant Professor in the Department of International Relations

The Council noted that Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew was on lien w.e.f. 3rd Jan 2016 to join as Assistant Professor in Jawaharlal Nehru University, New Delhi. Subsequently, he requested for extension of his *lien* for one more year which was also accepted. Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew requested vide letter dated 4th Oct 2017 for termination of his *lien* for his confirmation at Jawaharlal Nehru University.

The Vice-Chancellor accepted his request for termination of *lien* w.e.f. 1st Feb 2016. The Council ratified the action of the Vice-Chancellor in terminating *lien* of Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew on his request w.e.f. 1st Feb 2016.

EC 29.3.3: Appointment of Shri Depen Chettri as Laboratory Attendant under PWD (HH) category

The Council noted that the University had advertised 5 posts of Laboratory Attendants {UR-4(1-PWD HH) & OBC-1}. The Council in its 28th meeting approved for appointment of 4 candidates against 3-UR, 1-OBC post. One post of PWD (HH) was erroneously left out. Against that post two candidates Shri Depen Chettri and Shri Balaram Sharma appeared for written examination and based on the marks secured in the written examination. Shri Depen Chettri under PWD (HH) category was offered the post of Laboratory Attendant and he joined the University on 10th Nov 2017. The Council ratified the action of the Vice-Chancellor in giving offer to Shri Depen Chettri under PWD (HH) category for the post of Laboratory Attendant based on his performance in written examination.

EC 29.3.4: Resignation of Shri Ankush Gaurav from the post of LDC

Shri Ankush Gaurav joined the University as LDC on 1^{st} Dec 2015. His services in the University were also confirmed. He submitted his resignation with request to release on 13^{th} Oct 2017 in order to join as Assistant in National Science Centre, New Delhi. After depositing the salary equivalent to the period falling short of notice period of three months, the Vice-Chancellor accepted the resignation of Shri Ankush Gaurav and he was relieved on 13^{th} Oct 2017 (A/N).

The Council ratified the action of the Vice-Chancellor in acceptance of resignation of Shri Ankush Gaurav w.e.f. 13^{th} Oct 2017 (A/N).

EC 29.3.5: Promotion of Shri Lakpa Tshering Sherpa, Personal Assistant to Private Secretary

Shri Lakpa Tshering Sherpa, Personal Assistant became eligible for promotion as per Recruitment & Promotion Rules (Non-Teaching) 2016 to the post of Private Secretary, against vacant position under promotion quota. After fulfilling the eligible criteria and qualifying the stenography test held on 16th August 2017, on the recommendations of the Departmental Promotional Committee, Shri Lakpa Tshering Sherpa was promoted to the post of Private Secretary in the Pay Band Rs 9,300-34,800 in Grade Pay of Rs. 4,600/-. He assumed charge as Private Secretary on 1st Sept 2017 (A/N).

The Council ratified the action of the Vice-Chancellor in promoting Shri Lakpa Tshering Sherpa as Private Secretary.

SECTION-4 MATTER FOR CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL

EC 29.4.1: Extension of appointment of Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav

With the approval of the Executive Council Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav was appointed as Assistant Professor on contract against lien vacancy of Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew. The Council noted that Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav joined the University on 18th Sept 2017 and lien period of Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew was upto 30th June 2018. On request of Dr. Teiborlang T. Kharsyntiew his lien was terminated retrospectively w.e.f. 01.02.2016.

The Council also noted that University may take some time to advertise the post to fill up the vacancy. The Council after deliberation extended the appointment of Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav on contract for a period up to 30th June 2018 or till such time the post is filled up on regular basis, whichever is earlier.

Regarding quantum of pay and allowances admissible to Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav on his appointment as Assistant Professor on contract it was clarified that Dr. Madan Kumar Yadav was appointed alongwith others through advertisement on full pay scale. As such he will be in the regular pay scale and draw pay and allowance as applicable to a regular appointee.

EC 29.4.2: Relieving of Prof. Nutankumar S. Thingujam, Professor on Lien

The Council noted that Prof. Nutankumar S. Thingujam has been selected as Professor in Tripura University and has requested for being relieved on *lien* w.e.f. 21st Dec 2017 after serving 3 months notice period.

The Council approved grant of lien to Prof. Nutankumar S. Thingujam w.e.f. 21st Dec 2017 for a period of one year to join as Professor in Tripura University.

EC 29.4.3: Relieving of Shri Shailesh Shukla, Hindi Officer on Lien

The Council noted that Shri Shailesh Shukla has been selected as Junior Manager (Rajbhasha) in NMDC Limited, Hyderabad and has requested for being relieved w.e.f. 29th Jan 2018 after serving 3 months notice period.

The Council approved grant of *lien* to Shri Shailesh Shukla. Hindi Officer w.e.f. 29th Jan 2018 for a period of one year to join as Junior Manger (Rajbhasha) in NMDC Limited, Hyderabad.

EC 29.4.4: Study Leave matters:

1. Study Leave of Dr. Nagendra Thakur:

Dr. Nagendra Thakur, Assistant Professor in Department of Microbiology has requested for Study Leave of one year from 15th Jan 2018 to 14th Jan 2019 to pursue post-doctoral fellowship under Overseas Associateship of DBT for Scientists of North Eastern Region offered by Department of Biotechnology. Dr. Nagendra Thakur has completed 3 years of continuous service on 22nd April 2017 and is a permanent faculty member. Department of Microbiology has also recommended his application.

The Council after deliberations approved grant of Study Leave for a period of 1 year from 15th Jan 2018 to Dr. Nagendra Thakur to persue Post-Doctoral Fellowship under Overseas Associateship of DBT. Payment of salary to Dr. Nagendra Thakur, Assistant Professor during the period of study leave may be decided as per the rules of the University.

2. Study Leave of Mrs. Saswati Saha:

Mrs. Saswati Saha, Assistant Professor in the Department of English has requested for grant of Study Leave for 2 years from 1st Feb 2018 to work on her Ph.D at Jadavpur University where she is registered as Ph.D scholar since 4th Dec 2012. Mrs. Saswati Saha has completed 3 years of continuous service on 8th May 2017 and is a permanent faculty member.

The Council after deliberations approved grant of Study Leave for a period of 2 years to Mrs. Saswati Saha, Assistant Professor in the Department of English from 1st Feb 2018 to persue her Ph.D from Jadavpur University.

EC 29.4.5: Honorary Faculty Positions

The Council noted that in its 27th meeting held on 9th June 2017, the Vice-Chancellor was authorized to constitute a committee to look into the details of Honorary Faculty positions from other Universities and Research Institutes as how such positions will be managed and the honorarium to be allowed to them.

The Council also noted that the Vice-Chancellor constituted a committee under his Chairmanship with Prof. V.Rama Devi, Prof. Abhijit Dutta, Prof. Jeta Sankritayana and Prof. Shanti S. Sharma as members and Joint Registrar (Acad) as Convener. A draft guideline for managing honorary faculty positions were placed before the Council.

The Council after deliberations accepted the draft guidelines in principle. However, it suggested that in place of appointment, *'Invitation'* may be used. Nomenclature may also be re-worked to include visiting fellows etc. For invitation, criteria need to be spelled out and University may also seek clearance from MHRD, Home Ministry and Foreign Ministry in respect of visiting faculty members from some foreign countries.

EC 29.4.6: CBI Case in PE0102016A0003 against Dr. Vijay Kumar Thangellapali, Associate Professor and others:

The Council noted that in its 27th meeting held on 9th June 2017 the University was asked to seek legal opinion in the matter before proceeding further. The Council also noted that the University had sought two legal opinions on the matter, one from the Legal Consultant of the University and the other from Shri B.P. Subba, Advocate, High Court, Kolkata. Both Legal experts have given almost similar opinion. Legal Consultant of the University has opined that the recommendation made by the CBI does not only fall outside the jurisdiction under which the agency is competent to investigate under the law, but the nature of action recommended also falls outside the scope and purview of the matters for which the agency has the authority to deal with any investigation that is undertaken. Power to initiate departmental action against any employee is vested with the competent authority of University under the relevant service rules. The competent authority shall be within its jurisdiction to initiate such action in accordance with the service laws by following the prescribed procedure.

Shri B.P. Subba, Advocate, High Court, Kolkata observed that the present case is civil in nature and no criminal element is involved. CBI has exceeded its power by investigating and interfering in administrative functions of the University. The investigation done by the CBI against the University is arbitrary and in excess of its power and jurisdiction. He has also opined that the Executive Council has to take decision without being prejudiced by the report of the CBI and in the interest of the University.

The Council also noted that Central Vigilance Commission vide letter dated 10th Nov 2016 has asked for proposals in seeking advice in respect of officers on CBI report. The MHRD vide letter dated 8th Nov 2017 has asked for action taken on the report of the CBI.

Both the Legal experts have given almost similar opinion that the authority to decide in the instant case lies with the Executive Council without being prejudiced by the report of the CBI.

The Council took note that some irregularities have been pointed out by the CBI in its report which have also been taken note of by the CVC and the MHRD. It also took note of CBI letter dated 16th Feb 2017 vide which CBI Report cannot be made available to the suspected officials and only contents can be used in order to issue charge sheets.

The Council after detailed deliberations decided to authorize the Vice-Chancellor to constitute a committee to look into the alleged irregularities committed by the Screening Committee etc. in short listing Dr. Vijay Kumar Thangellapali and others, and submit a report to facilitate the Council to decide on the future course of action against the concerned officials, if any.

TABLE ITEMS

EC 29.4.7: Relieving of Dr. V. Krishna Ananth, Associate Professor on Lien:

Dr. V. Krishna Ananth, Associate Professor in the Department of History has requested to be relieved on *lien* w.e.f. 23rd Feb 2018 after serving the notice period of 3 months to join as Chair and Professor in the Department of History in the School of Liberal Arts and Basic Sciences in SRM University, Amaravati. The Council noted that Dr. V. Krishna Ananth is a permanent faculty of the University.

The Council after deliberations approved relieving of Dr. V. Krishna Ananth, Associate Professor on *lien* for a period of 1 year from 23rd Feb 2018 to join as

Chair and Professor in department of History in the School of Liberal arts and Basic Sciences at SRM University, Amaravati.

EC 29.4.8: Relieving of Dr. Subhash Misra, Assistant Professor on Lien:

Dr. Subhash Misra, Assistant Professor in the Department of Education has requested to be relieved on lien w.e.f. 12th Dec 2017 (A/N) to join as Assistant Professor in Babasaheb Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Lucknow (UP). Dr. Subhash Misra is a permanent faculty member and as per the policy of the University has to serve 3 months notice period or by paying salary equivalent for shortfall of the notice period.

The Council after deliberations approved grant of lien for a period of 1 year to Dr. Subhash Misra to join as Assistant Professor in Babasaheb Bhimrao Ambedkar University, Lucknow (UP) from the date of his relief on 19th Feb 2018 i.e. after serving 3 months notice period or before if salary equivalent of shortfall of notice period is deposited.

EC 29.4.9: Screening-cum-Evaluation Committee proceedings for placement in next stage under CAS of Assistant Professors:

S1.	Name	Department	Stage of	Date of
No.			Placement	eligibility
1	Dr. Jigmie Wanchuk Bhutia	Deptt. of	Stage II to III	01.07.2017
		Tourism		
2	Dr. Sanghamitra Choudhury	Deptt. of	State I to II	09.03.2016
		PCS&M		
3	Dr. Shailendra Kumar	Deptt. of	Stage I to II	09.03.2016
		Management		
4	Dr. Subhash Misra	Deptt. of	State I to II	28.01.2015
		Education		
5	Dr. Somendra Nath	Deptt. of	Stage I to II	25.08.2015
	Chakraborty	Chemistry		
6	Dr. Samidha Vedabala	Deptt. of	Stage I to II	17.07.2017
		Music		

The Council approved the Screening cum Evaluation Committee proceedings for placement under CAS of Assistant Professors in the next stage as per details given below:

EC 29.4.10: MoU with National Institute of Technology Durgapur, West Bengal

The Council after deliberations approved the draft MoU with National Institute of Technology Durgapur, West Bengal with a validity period of 5 years. (Appendix-1)

EC 29.4.11: UGC Non-NET fellowship

The Council was informed that UGC Non-NET fellowship @ ₹ 5,000 and ₹ 8,000 per month to M.Phil & Ph.D candidates respectively used to be paid from the date of admission to the respective courses. Deans' Committee in its 7th meeting held on 7th April 2017 recommended the following to be added to the minimum norms applicable to the UGC Non-NET fellowship:

- *i)* To count fellowship period irrespective of the source of fellowship as follows:
 - a) 18 months for M.Phil
 - b) 3+1 years of Ph.D

This decision was noted by the Academic Council in its 21st meeting held on 31st May 2017 and by the Executive Council in its 27th meeting held on 9th June 2017. A Notification dated 23rd June 2017 was accordingly issued.

The Council further noted that Sikkim University Students Association (SUSA) raised the following queries for addressing by the University.

- *i)* What was the rationale of stopping UGC Non-NET Fellowship till *M.Phil/Ph.D* candidates clears their coursework.
- *ii)* What happens to those Ph.D candidates who are exempt from doing coursework as they have done their coursework in M.Phil and have secured at least 60% marks.

The above queries were examined by the University in the light of the UGC guidelines issued vide D.O. No. F.87-1-2012 (SU) dated 24th June 2013 which states: "Non-NET Fellowship may be granted @₹5000 from the date of Admission in case of M.Phil students and ₹8,000 from the date of registration in case of Ph.D students". The University decided to align the Non-NET fellowships in Sikkim University as per guidelines mentioned above. This was considered by the Deans Committee in its 10th meeting held on 24th Oct 2017 which recommended to the Academic Council to reframe the Notification dated 23rd June 2017 on the lines of the UGC guidelines dated 24th June 2013. The matter came up for consideration in the 22nd meeting of the Academic Council on 14th Nov 2017 which also recommended it for approval.

The Council further noted that on 20th Nov 2017 SUSA office-bearers had a meeting with the Vice-Chancellor regarding non-payment of UGC Non-NET fellowship and asked for the UGC letter dated 24th June 2013. The said letter could not be produced as no such letter was issued by the UGC. It was actually a letter sent by the UGC to some State Universities. On that basis Jadavpur University had framed some guidelines for its University. On 21st Nov 2017 a section of students under SUSA leadership demonstrated at the administrative block demanding release of Non-NET fellowship, showing UGC letter dated 24th June 2013 and action against the officials responsible. After discussions at

various levels in view of the protest by the students the following statement was issued by the University to the agitating students which settled the matter:

"In consideration of the representation received from Secretary for Academic Affairs and also in consideration of the hardship faced by the students, the Vice-Chancellor was pleased to review the matter and decide as under:

- 1. M.Phil/Ph.D Non-NET fellowship shall be disbursed forthwith along with arrears. Amendment to Notification dated 23rd June 2017 will be issued tomorrow.
- 2. An Inquiry will be conducted with regard to issuance of Notification dated 23rd June 2017 and actions taken on it thereafter.

This matter will also be placed before Executive Council in its next meeting"

The Council further noted that the Notification dated 22nd Nov 2017 was issued cancelling the Notification dated 23rd June 2017 and allowing UGC Non-NET fellowship to M.Phil/Ph.D students from the date of admission to the respective course along with the arrears. Inquiry Committee could not be constituted as the students' nominees to the inquiry committee have not been made available by the SUSA despite reminding them by e-mail dated 22nd Nov 2017 and a letter dated 30th Nov 2017.

The Council noted the action taken by the University and advised that such issues may be decided by the University at the level of the Vice-Chancellor and whenever approval of Statutory authority is required, then the matter may be taken up for approval of the concerned statutory authority. The Council further advised to constitute an inquiry committee in the matter.

SECTION – 5 MINUTES OF AUTHORITIES/COMMITTEES

EC 29.5.1: Minutes of the 22nd meeting of the Academic Council held on 14th Nov 2017:

The Council noted the Minutes of the 22nd meeting of the Academic Council held on 14th Nov 2017. The Council further gave specific approval to the following items:

- i) Regulation for Certificate and Diploma Courses **(Appendix-2)**. The Council further advised that the payment may be made as per the policy of the University.
- ii) Regulations on conduct of Ph.D, M.Phil and B.Voc. programmes in the University (Appendix-3,4 & 5). Revised Regulations as placed before the Council were approved.
- iii) Action Plan 17-by-17 (Appendix-6).

- iv) The Council approved grant of Institutional Affiliation to Namgyal Institute of Tibetology (NIT), Deorali, Gangtok. However, for starting any course NIT has to apply in the prescribed proforma and the course has to conform to the standards of Sikkim University.
- v) Approved renewal of temporary affiliation of nine (9) colleges for the academic session 2018-19.
- vi) Approved temporary affiliation of MA in Education course at Loyola College of Education, Namchi from academic session 2018-19.

TABLE ITEM

EC 29.5.2: Minutes of the 17TH meeting of the Finance Committee held at New Delhi on 24th Nov 2017

The Council after deliberations noted the recommendations of the Finance Committee and gave specific approvals to:

- i) authorize the Vice-Chancellor to approve the final SAR with Annual Accounts 2016-17 for submission to MHRD for placing before both the Houses of parliament.
- ii) to constitute a Standing Audit Committee to consider outstanding Audit Paras.
- iii)the Council noted the views of the Finance Committee on Rental subsidy and assistance. After long deliberations the Chairman explained to the Council the reasons for grant of rental subsidy. The Council decided to review rental subsidy at the time of implementation of 7th Pay Commission by the UGC.

iv)Revised Budget Estimates 2017-18

SECTION – 6 ITEMS FROM THE CHAIR

EC 29.6.1: Annual Report 2016-17

Chairman made a presentation about the Annual Report 2016-17. The Council approved Annual Report 2016-17 of the University for sending to the MHRD for placing before both the Houses of Parliament.

The meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the chair.

Sd/-	Sd/-
(T.K.Kaul)	(Prof. Jyoti Prakash Tamang)
Registrar & Secretary	Vice-Chancellor & Chairman